SMILE Community Safety Committee
Minutes
10:00 AM - October 19, 2025 - Blue Kangaroo Coffee Roasters

Attendees: Grant Huling (Chair), Lance Goldenberg, Patrick Brunette, Eric Cramer, Thavisha
Tudawe

Minutes from the previous September meeting, which had been emailed out prior, were
approved.

A shooting murder took place at SE 17th Ave and SE Harold St several days prior, with a body
discovered there. The group discussed. Eric and Thvisha noted that the police had stopped by,
asking to see any relevant doorbell cam footage of a fleeing suspect.

Willamette Center coordination: Grant said that he had been emailing with Zy Lewis, manager
of the Willamette Center homeless shelter, and planned to meet again with her (the first time in
18 months). He asked the group what they would like asked of her. Patrick noted that people
(presumably a mix of both residents and non-resident acquaintances of theirs) loiter outside of
the shelter. He asked if the shelter might be able to set expectations during a resident’s
onboarding process regarding good community conduct. Grant said Zy should be asked whether
residents are being told of the CSC-Willamette Shelter Adopt-a-Block partnership, and if the
offer is extended to residents to pick up litter as well, instead of shelter staff. Eric asked if a
framework might be set with the current management so that a new shelter leader would not
represent starting over, and potentially with a less sympathetic partner. Thavisha pointed out the
issue of drug use, loitering and camping extending down into the entrance of Springwater
Corridor. Grant asked Zy via email broadly about “setting expectations” but a meeting time has
not been set as of minutes writing. All in attendance said they would want to be notified of a
sit-down time with Zy so they could potentially attend.

Update: This took place November 11th at the Willamette Center and was attended by Zy
Lewis (Transition Projects [TPI] Manager of the Willamette Center shelter), Duncan
Anderson (Transition Projects Director of Shelter Services), and Grant, Lance, Patrick,
Eric, and Creed Bruce of the CSC. Zy provided a handout of the Good Neighbor
Agreement conduct standards that all residents are held to. This applies within a 5-block
radius of the shelter. Non-compliance leads to “separation” from being able to stay at
the shelter and use other TPI services (besides the downtown daytime resource center).
Zy followed up with these disciplinary standards, which are attached along with the Good
Neighbor Agreement and are available on asking Grant
(community-safety-chair@sellwood.org). An example: a resident is kicked out of the
shelter program for 30 days if using drugs out in the community. Zy said that while TPI
will log this transgressions if they observe them, TPI welcomes reports from any members
of the broader community. You can call the Willamette Center front desk at



(503)488-7750 or email zy.lewis@itprojects.org to report misconduct affecting the
neighborhood that you believe may be by a resident.

Zy reported that she had just connected with PEMO and would attend the next weekly
meeting. The shelter intends to get PEMO-faciliated free string lights for the trees out
front, pending coordination between MultCo, which owns the lot, and the City, which
would provide. Zy noted that this light discourages tent camping — the Willamette Center
staff consistently reports camping around its building and wants to discourage it. On
that front, there was discussion of the orange Jersey barriers along SE Mitchell St. These
were put up after a CSC-led PEMO walk, and due to consistent RV parking and tent
camping there, prior to Willamette Center reopening at the end of 2024. Zy
acknowledged that they prevent RV camping but noted that they also prevent the weekly
mobile health clinic from parking conveniently, and prevent staff from parking nearby.
She noted that tent camping can still take place on the sidewalks next to the barriers, or
between them. Not knowing CSC had a role in the barriers appearing, Zy said she had
brought up potentially removing them to PEMO. Grant said he would want to make sure
that, if their removal cause immediate RV or heavier camping issues, PEMO could
quickly put them back. The CSC members overall did not voice strong opposition to the
Jersey barriers potentially being modified. Zy also noted that TPI is interested in buying
the gravel lot across from Mitchell St. from the City, as this would allow TPI to report
camping and loitering there as loitering. Qutreach to the businesses there, which TPI has
Jjust begun to do and which CSC intends to do soon, was briefly discussed.

Willamette Center litter pick-up: Given the concerns of those attending about behavior around
the Willamette Center, Grant proposed that interesting volunteers meet to pick up litter not just
around the shelter, but down into Oaks Bottom across the street. New materials have been
received (claws, buckets, etc.) as of minutes. This meeting is scheduled for Sunday, November
16 at 5:00 PM. A clean-up was also scheduled for November 15th at 10:00 AM at the
intersection of 17th and Tacoma, after member interest was voiced.

Learning from the Pearl District Neighborhood Association Foot Patrols: Patrick reported that in
attending the Northwest Examiner’s recent annual award event, he learned about some
compelling neighborhood safety-related activities across the city. Most relevant is the Pearl
District Neighborhood Association area that has taken direct volunteer action with a Foot Patrol.
Grant noted how the CSC’s Statement of Values is against vigilanteism, and noted how there are
potential legal and reputational risks if the CSC were seen to be “patrolling.” Grant said that, on
the other hand, direct actions out in the community, like litter and graffiti clean-ups, have been
some of the CSC’s most successful activities, in terms of building engagement and morale.

Grant said he would like to connect with the Pearl District NA and learn from their best
practices.

Update: On 10/27, Grant and Patrick had a call with Chris Mackovjak, director of the
Pearl District NA Foot Patrols. They have a core group of 25 volunteers. The
neighborhood has been broken into seven zones, each of which has a leader and a
regular schedule. A Clean Team, lead by a Walk Leader, will go out at least once a week



per zone, primarily picking up litter, but also reporting problems encountered to
311/PDXreporter.org (non-emergency) or 911 if encountered, as warranted. Chris noted
you can text 911 now (though can t yet text a photo). The group has an email list. They
are given custom vests, clean up equipment, and usually go in groups of 4 to 10. There is
a required onboarding process for volunteers joining a Clean Team: They are given
resources, a list of Do’s and Don ts, and a waiver that must be signed. Chris said he
would share all of these forms. Chris noted that the neighborhood association has
coverage under the District 4 association insurance umbrella, just as SMILE does. Grant
said he would connect with SMILE President Dave Dougan about the waiver and
insurance coverage factor and would seek to incorporate lessons about
boundary/expectation setting with volunteers as well as logistical sophistication from this

group.
See here for more: https://www.pearldistrict.org/committees/foot-patrol

Chris also noted that there is a separate entity, Northwest Community Conservancy,
through which local businesses and donors pool resources to fund private security guards
who walk through the area. Patrick and Grant said this was an idea that had emerged
within the CSC, but did not have enough buy-in (or perhaps enough local businesses
interested) to occur in Sellwood-Moreland. Patrick and Grant agreed that the
Sellwood-Moreland Business Association would be the entity to take a lead on this
locally, and could contact Northwest Community Conservancy to learn more.

Draft
Minutes to be approved at the next meeting of the Community Safety Committee, taking place the
first weekend of December at Blue Kangaroo (date and time TBD)



